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Dear Shareholders and Friends:

Each year I take the opportunity to share with you a summary of the financial
performance of CCF Holding Company and our subsidiary, Heritage Bank. Before I get
into the financials, I would like to take the opportunity to take a look back at our history
and discuss some recent changes in the Bank.

In 1996, David Turner, former President and CEO of CCF and Heritage Bank, asked me
to join Heritage Bank. After prayer and a discussion with my wife, I decided I was
interested. David, sharing his leadership and vision, asked me to 'build the best bank' in
our community. At the time, we were only serving the Clayton County community
with brick-and-mortar locations, but our customer base was spread throughout Fayette
and Henry counties as well. I took the initiative to expand our reach in Clayton and find
ways to serve the other counties more effectively.

Building a community bank is not unlike building any small business, except for the
fact that the state and federal governments, through the Georgia Department of
Banking and the FDIC, closely monitors the activities and often assert themselves in
directing the business. Another key point for building our business is establishing a
culture of quality over growth. With this in mind, I knew that to achieve David's goal I
needed to build a team of "second to none" bankers. I knew the key to long-term
success would be my ability to assemble a team that could work together, meet the
challenge, and 'build a great bank'. Like any business, there needs to be the expertise to
get the job done and done right; however, in our case, there also needed to be a
chemistry that could bring out the best in each team member while honoring the
individual spirit that drives each to achieve. So, my objective when building the team
was to select bankers with servant's hearts and selfless attitudes. From 1996 - 1999,
some exceptional and talented individuals joined the team.

Since I have been a banker for over thirty-six years, I have met and worked with some
trusted bankers. The team of bankers we selected guided our bank through a growth
cycle rarely seen in the Southern Crescent area while achieving performance standards
that made Heritage the highest ranked publicly traded bank in the state of Georgia and
the sixty-fourth ranked bank in the country in 2007 according to the Atlanta Journal
Constitution and US Banker magazine. This same team piloted Heritage Bank through
the worst economic downturn of our lifetime from 2008 to 2012.

On December 31, 2016, many of these early team members retired from Heritage
leaving an indelible mark on our Company. I would like to pay tribute to those team

members who retired.
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■ Richard "Dick" Florin - In 1996 when David Turner called and asked me to join
him at Heritage, the first thing I did was go to Dick Florin and ask him if he
would come with me. Dick and I worked together for a Clayton County banking
competitor. Fortunately for me, he said yes. Dick was a special kind of lender
with an extremely loyal customer base. Even in the worst of times Dick's loans
performed and were a major reason Heritage survived the economy in 2009.
Dick and his wife Evelyn are personal friends, and we will always have a special
bond.

■ C. T. "Tommy" Segers - In 1997, we decided to move into Henry and Fayette
Counties to pursue some of the longtime loyal customers who had moved from
Clayton but still called Heritage their bank. In early 1999 Tommy, a proven and
tested banker from South Fulton County, was the next key hire for the Bank.
Tommy began his career with us as the Henry County president, but it wasn't
long before we knew his eye for detail and his keen sense of credit required us to
spread his talent more broadly. He soon became our Senior Credit Officer.
Tommy kept our eye on quality when it was tempting to get caught up in
quantity. Tommy worked into his 70s to ensure Heritage was solid coming out
of the difficult economic period. Tommy's and my friendship runs deep.

■ John "Jack" Bowdoin -Later in 1999, we made a strategic move by attracting
Jack to come work with us. Everyone in Fayette County knows Jack, but for the
rest of you, if you picked up a Miriam Webster Dictionary and looked up
"Banker', Jack's bio and picture would be shown. I often said when Jack walks
into a room everyone notices and comes over to him to either say hello or
introduce themselves; however, you will never meet a more humble ambassador
for our Bank than Jack Bowdoin. Jack, the face of Heritage Bank, was always
willing to help develop the younger lenders and was an advocate for our
customers. Again more than just a co-worker, he is a trusted friend.

■ David Turner - David gave over forty-five years to this Company and
community. His leadership, commitment, and honor are the guiding principles
of Heritage's core values. David is a unique individual; spend an hour with him,
and I can assure you it will be the most interesting hour you've had in a long
time. He is a man with a huge heart and absolutely no ego. David gave me the
opportunity to join Heritage and provided wise counsel along the way. Eighteen
Buicks and 26,000 golf balls later (I said he was interesting) he is still the same
man I met in June 1996; a man of his word and devoted to helping others.

These four bankers helped shape the Heritage Bank of today and me, as a Bank Officer
and a man.

Having a combined 30+ years with Heritage, Mike Kerr, Ben Freeman, and Cindy
Kelley also retired in 2016, contributing their expertise to the growth and persevering
during the economic downturn.
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Yes, many changes have occurred; however, the Bank is in good hands. The Senior
Management Team has a very talented group. John Westervelt, a 16 year veteran, has
shifted from Senior Lending Officer to Senior Credit Officer. Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), Mary Jo Jester, is completing her 20th year with the bank and Senior Operations
Officer, Kathy Zovlonsky, has 12 years. Shirley Etheridge has managed our branch
system for seventeen years, and our most tenured employee, Edith Stevens, Risk
Management Officer, has thirty-eight years at Heritage. While there were certainly big
shoes to fill, the rest of the senior team is intact and close-knit.

How did we fill the voids created by such key people? Kerry Arnold, David Crow, and
Dan Vano were promoted to County Presidents. Each is leading a great staff of lenders
and employees by serving customers and developing new prospects in our three
primary markets: Henry, Clayton, and Fayette Counties. To coordinate this effort, we
were fortunate to have Rocky Lipham join us as President and Chief Banking Officer. I
have known Rocky for over a dozen years and using that same philosophical approach
as 20 years ago I know without a shadow of a doubt he is the right person to lead at
Heritage.

Much has happened, but thanks to the loyalty that these retirees demonstrated, we were
able to plan and transition these changes over a three year period. If you are a customer,
while you may have missed your banker, the service level of Heritage Bank never
skipped a beat. If you are an investor without a loan or deposit relationship, the
trajectory of CCF never missed a beat either.

Let's talk about 2016 and take a peek into 2017. As I always like to say, please take the
words in this letter in combination with and not as a substitute for the detailed financial
information in the following pages of this annual report. The following report contains
information that I may not touch on, but you may find helpful in your evaluation of the
Company's performance.

Looking at the Consolidated Balance Sheet, we saw a 9% growth in Assets to more than
$427 million. As I have mentioned in prior years, Deposit growth has been
exceptionally strong with over $20 million of growth year over year. This year we saw a
spike in lending as the Loan Portfolio grew by more than 10% to just over $304 million.
Flipping over to the Consolidated Statements of Income, this growth drove Interest and
Fees on Loans up almost $700,000 year over year, and Net Interest Income rose by
nearly $900,000. 'These positive moves were offset by fewer gains on Sales of Loans
(primarily SBA loan premiums) and increased Salaries and Employee Benefits. The
increases in Salaries and Benefits are due mainly to running most, if not all, of 2016 with
dual executives in some roles as we were transitioning the retirees. We expect the
Salaries and Benefits expense to level off in 2017, but the growth we are experiencing
does require us to stay ahead of the hiring curve to insure a high level of customer
service.
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Looking at the quality measures Other Real Estate dropped by 23% to just over $7
million. Total Classified Assets including ORE fell by almost $3.5 million to a total of
$9.6 million. Past Due Loans continue at extremely low levels of less than 0.50%. We
can again report that no significant loans made after 2009 are showing any signs of
serious stress.

The earnings for 2016 were approximately $6.9 million. However, this is primarily the
result of a reinstatement of the Company's Deferred Tax Asset for Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) purposes. The earnings are explained better in the
footnotes of the Financial Statements. In simple terms, the Company is eligible to book
this asset because its earnings show a great likelihood of future tax liabilities being
generated which will offset the value of this asset. In short, the future is bright.

What can we expect? The lending momentum that we saw in the second half of 2016 is
expected to carry over to 2017. The organizational team we have in place is designed to
carry increased volumes and produce opportunities. Heritage Bank is benefiting from
an excellent reputation in the community and lack of community bank competition. We
continue to seek quality relationships and provide them with exceptional service. The
names and faces may have changed a bit, but the goal remains the same: build the best
community bank.

We appreciate the confidence you have shown with your investment. We do our very
best each and every day to prove our value to you.

Take Care,

~~

Leonard A. Moreland
President and Chief Executive Officer
CCF Holding Company

Chief Executive Officer
Heritage Bank
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary

tjsdd.com

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated
statements of changes in shareholders' equity, income, comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfornung procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Mardi 24, 2017
Dublin, Georgia

1004 Hillcrest Parkway
Dublin. GA 31021

vHONE: 478.272.2030
Fnx: 478.272.3318

2905 Premiere Parkway
s~~ce ioo

Duluth, GA 30097
vHONE: 770.499.1400
Fnx: 770.498.1419

118 Park of Commerce Drive
Suite 200

Savannah, GA 37405
PHONE: 912.238.1001
Fnx: 912.238.1701



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Assets

Cash and due from banks ~ 23,133,785 $ 27,591,054

Total cash and cash equivalents 23,133,785 27,591,054

Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 18,152,000 12,907,050

Securities available for sale, at fair value 47,305,225 44,099,147

Securities held to maturity, at cost 7,409,478 9,038,637

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, restricted, at rnst 567,900 328,300

Loans, net of unearned inmme 304,376,928 276,321,204

Less -allowance for loan losses (3,813,080) (3,294,54

Loans, net 300,563,848 273,026,657

Bank premises and equipment, net 6,387,502 6,065,395

Other real estate 7,018,986 9,154,905

Accrued interest receivable 547,370 411,547

Cash surrender value of life insurance 8,661,760 8,323,655

Other assets 7,585,481 2,550,928

Total Assets $ 427,333,335 $ 393,497,275

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Deposits:

Non-interest bearing $ 89,903,054 $ 86,353,465

Interest bearing 279,564,921 263,034,327

Total deposits 369,467,975 349,387,792

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 13,119,079 11,724,074

Federal Home Loan Bank advance 5,000,000 -

Notes payable 3,865,833 3,656,473

Accrued interest payable 71,899 83,916

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,156,026 1,945,708

Total liabilities 393,680,812 366,797,963

Shareholders' Equity:

Series A Preferred stock, 6°~ non-cumulative, $1,000 par, authorized

9,200 shares, issued and outstanding 9,200 shares in 2016 and 2015 9,200,000 9,200,000

Preferred stock, no par value; 990,800 shares authorized in 2016

and 2015; no shares issued or outstanding - -

Common stock, $.10 par value, authorized 50,000,000 shares, issued

and outstanding 5,190,223 and 4,086,223 in 2016 and 2015, respectively 519,022 408,622

Paid-in capital surplus 10,422,318 9,500,104

Retained eaznings 13,856,823 7,956,672

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (345,640) (366,086)

Total shareholders' equity 33,652,523 26,699,312

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 427,333,335 $ 393,497,275

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance, December 31, 2014

Stock dividend

Grants exercised

Issuance of stock options

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Balance, December 31, 2015

Stock dividend

Issuance of stock options

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Balance, December 31, 2016

Preferred Stock

Shares Amount

~),'O0 $ 9,200,000

- - - - - - 14,717

- - - - - 3,685,387 - 3,685,387

- - - - - - 28,676 28,676

9,200 9,200,000 4,086,223 408,622 9,500,104 7,956,672 (366,086) 26,699,312

- - 1,104,000 110,400 883,200 (993,600) - -

- - - - 39,014 - - 39,014

- - - - - 6,893,751 - 6,893,751

- - - - - - 20,446 20,446

9,200 $ 9,200,000 5,190,223 $ 519,022 $10,422,318 $ 13,856,823 $ (345,640) $ 33,652,523

Paid-in

Common Stock Capital

Shares Amount Surplus

3,604,316 $ 360,432 $ 9,109,773 $

469,201 46,920 375,360

12,706 1,270 254

14 717

Accumulated

Other

Retained Comprehensive

Earnings Loss Total

4,693,565 $ (394,762) $ 22,969,008

(422,280) -

- - 1,524

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Yenrs ended December 31,

2016 2015

Interest and Dividend Income:

Interest and fees on loans $ 14,371,840 $ 13,674,517

Interest income on securities 825,764 762,808

Income on federal funds sold 97,823 47,277

Income oninterest-bearing deposits in other banks 4,140 224

Dividend income 16,102 15,257

Total interest and dividend income 15,315,669 14,500,083

Interest Expense:

Deposits 889,722 991,326

Other interest e~cpense 261,053 239,368

Total interest expense 1,150,775 1,230,694

Net interest inrnme before provision for loan losses 14,164,894 13,269,389

Less -provision for loan losses 420,000 1,200,000

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 13,744,894 12,069,389

Noninterest Income:

Service charges on deposit accounts 1,070,058 1,091,955

Other services chazges, commissions and fees 725,255 672,341

Gain on sales of loans 182,341 413,705

Gain on sales of securities 54,347 63,884

Gain on disposal of premises and equipment 16,586 910

Increase in CSV of life insurance 338,105 333,106

Other income 165,313 232,074

Total noninterest income 2,552,035 2,807,975

Noninterest F~cpense:

Salaries 6,152,637 5,266,707

Employee benefits 1,754,743 1,558,130

Net occupancy expense 1,144,978 1,057,845

Equipment rental and depreciation of equipment 455,103 458,855

Loss (gain) on sales and writedown of foreclosed assets and other real estate 541,850 (336,985)

Expenses on foreclosed assets held 341,819 489,999

FDIC insurance premiums 496,396 806,015

Other expenses 3,618,996 3,270,£#7

Total noninterest expense 14,506,522 12,571,413

Income Before Income Taxes 1,790,407 2,305,951

Benefit of income taxes (5,103,344) (1,379,436)

Net Income $ 6,893,751 $ 3,685,387

Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 1.38 $ 1.Op

Diluted $ 0.21 $ 0.13

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net Income

Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized holding gains on investment securities held for sale

Reclassification adjustments for gains realized in income

Net unrealized gains

Tax effect

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015

~ ~ AQ2 7S~ ~ 1 ~ft~, ~A7

85,802 108,001

(54,34 (63,884)

31,455 44,117

(11,009) (15,441)

$ 6,914,197 $ 3,714,063

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income

Adjustments to rernncile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Provision for loan losses

Depreciation

(Gain) loss on sales and writedown of foreclosed assets and ORE

Net (acQetion) amortization on securities

Gain on sales of investment securities

Gain on disposal of premises and equipment

Gain on sale of loans

Compensation expense from issuance of stock options

Increase in CSV life insurance

Changes in accrued income and other assets

Changes in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015

$ 6,893,751 $ 3,685,387

420,000

487,481

541,850

34,627

(54,34

(16,586)

(182,341)

39,014

(338,105)

(5,181,385)

407.661

3,051,620

1,200,000

489,159

(336,985)

~~~)
(63,884)

(910)

(413,705)

14,717

(333,106)

(1,336,613)

483.152

3,386,428

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Net change in loans to customers

Net change in interest-bearing deposits in other banks

Purchase of available for sale securities

Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities

Proceeds from maturities/calls/paydowns of available for sale securitie

Proceeds from maturities/calls/paydowns of held to maturity securities

Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Proceeds from redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Property and equipment expenditures

Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment

Proceeds from sales of other real estate and repossessed assets

Capitalized improvements on foreclosed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

(27,321,369)

(5,244,950)

(13,526,914)

7,510,326

2,861,255

1,629,589

(271,075)

31,475

(1,641,785)

848,783

1,147,400

(6,812)

(33,984,07

(6,063,534)

(9,930,050)

(20,503,906)

4,469,438

5,950,606

1,482,529

4,400

(480,579)

4,412,170

(22,384)

(20,681,310)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net change in deposits

Net change in securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Proceeds from exercised options

Net cash provided by financing activities

20,080,183

1,395,005

5,000,000

26.475.1 f3£~

24,217,915

(192,044)

1.524

24.027.395

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,457,269) 6,732,513

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Yeaz 27,591,054 20,858,541

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Yeaz $ 23,133,785 $ 27,591,054

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash paid for interest and taxes

2016 2015

Interest on deposits and borrowings

Income taxes, net

Noncash items

Changes in unrealized gain/loss on investments

Transfer of loans to other real estate and other assets

Sale of foreclosed assets financed by loans

Common stock dividend

$ 1,163,345 $ 1,243,989

S - $

2016 2015

$ 31,455 $ 34,916

$ (375,519) $ (705,120)

~ 829,000 $ 4,762,318

$ 993,600 $ 422,280

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CCFHOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Principles of Consolidation -The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CCF Holding
Company (the "Company') and its wholly owned subsidiary, Heritage Bank (the "Bank"). All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

2. Reporting Entifiu -The Company is incorporated in the State of Georgia as a state charted bank holding
company whose business is conducted by its wholly owned bank subsidiary. T'he Company is primarily
regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (Federal Reserve) and Georgia
Department of Banking and Finance (DBF), while the Bank is primarily regulated by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the DBF. Both the Bank and the Company are subject to periodic
examinations by these regulatory authorities.

The Bank provides a full range of banking services to individual and corporate customers through its main
office in Jonesboro, Georgia and five other branch offices in Georgia, located in Clayton, Fayette and Henry
Counties. The Bank primarily competes with other financial institutions in its market azea, which it
considers to be south metropolitan Atlanta.

3. Securities - T'he classification of securities is determined at the date of purchase. Gains or losses on the sale
of securities are recognized on a specific identification basis.

Securities available for sale consist of investment securities not classified as trading securities or held-to-
maturity securities and are recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities
available-for-sale are excluded from earnings and are reported as a separate component of shareholders'
equity until realized. A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity investment
below cost that is deemed an other than temporary decline is charged to earnings and establishes a new cost
basis for the security.

Securities held to maturity are recorded at cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or
discounts. Transfers of securities between categories aze recorded at fair value at the date of transfer.
Unrealized holding gains or losses associated with transfers of securities from held-to-maturity to available-
for-sale are recorded as a separate component of shareholders' equity.

Mortgage-backed securities represent participating interests in pools of long-term first mortgage loans
originated and serviced by issuers of the securities. Mortgage-backed securities are carried at unpaid
principal balances, adjusted for unamortized premiums and unearned discounts.

The market value of securities is generally based on quoted market prices. If a quoted market price is not
available, market value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to
maturity.

4. Loans and Interest Income -Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by net deferred
loan fees, unearned discounts and a valuation allowance for possible loan losses. Interest on simple interest
installment loans and other loans is calculated by using the simple interest method on daily balances of the
principal amount outstanding. Loan origination fees collected, net of certain direct loan origination costs, are
deferred and recognized into income using the interest method as an adjustment of the yield over the lives
of the underlying loans. Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when full payment of principal or
interest is in doubt, or when they are past due 90 days as to either principal or interest. Senior management
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CCF HOLDING COMPANYAND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

may grant a waiver from non-accrual status if a past due loan is well secured and in process of collection. A
non-accrual loan may be restored to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually
due, including payments in arrears, are reasonably assured of repayment within a reasonable period, and
there is a sustained period of performance by the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the
loan. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is
subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.

5. Allowance for Loan Losses -The allowance for loan losses is available to absorb losses inherent in the credit
extension process. T'he entire allowance is available to absorb losses related to the loan and lease portfolio
and other extensions of credit, including off-balance sheet credit exposures. Credit exposures deemed to be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries of previously charged-off
amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses. Additions to the allowance for loan losses aze made
by charges to the provision for loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level, which, in management's judgment, is adequate to
absorb credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The amount of the allowance is based on management's
evaluation of the collectability of the loan portfolio, including the nature of the portfolio, credit
concentrations, trends in historical loss experience, specific impaired loans, economic conditions and other
risks inherent in the portfolio. Allowances for impaired loans aze generally determined based on collateral
values or the present value of estimated cash flows. Although management uses available information to
recognize losses on loans, because of uncertainties associated with local economic conditions, collateral
values and future cash flows on impaired loans, it is reasonably possible that a material change could occur
in the allowance for loan losses in the near term. Additionally, various regulatory agencies, as part of their
examination process, periodically review the allowance for loan losses and may require recognition of
additional provisions based on their judgment of information available at the time of examination.
However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be estimated.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that a creditor
will not be able to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment
include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest
payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally
are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment
shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan
and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower s prior payment
record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is
measured on a loan by loan basis by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent.

Lazge groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly,
the Company does not separately identify individual consumer loans for impairment disclosures.

6. Premises and Equipment -Land is carried at cost. Other premises and equipment aze stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to operating expenses over the estimated useful lives of
the assets and is computed on the straight-line method. In general, estimated lives for buildings are up to 40
yeazs, furniture and equipment useful lives range from two to 20 years, and the lives of software and
computer related equipment range from three to five yeazs. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
life of the related lease, or the related assets, whichever is shorter. Expenditures for major improvements of
the Company's premises and equipment are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
Minor repairs, maintenance and improvements are charged to operations as incurred. When assets are sold
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or disposed of, their cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain
or loss is reflected in earnings.

7. Other Real Estate Owned -Other real estate owned, acquired principally through foreclosure, is stated at
the lower of cost or net realizable value. Loan losses incurred in the acquisition of these properties are
charged against the allowance for possible loan losses at the time of foreclosure. Subsequent write-downs of
other real estate owned are charged against the current period's expense.

8. Cash Surrender Value of Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLT) -The Bank has purchased life insurance on the
lives of certain Bank officers. The beneficial aspects of these life insurance policies are tax-free earnings and
a tax free death benefit, which are realized by the Bank as the owner of the policies. The cash surrender
value of these policies is included as an asset on the balance sheets, and any increases in cash surrender
value are recorded as noninterest income in the statements of income.

9. Income Taxes - T'he Company reports income under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740, Income
Taxes, which requires recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this
method, deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse.

The Company and the Bank file a consolidated income tax return. The Bank computes its income tax
expense as if it filed an individual return except that it does not receive any portion of the surtax allocation.
Any benefits or disadvantages of the consolidation are absorbed by the parent company. The Bank pays its
allocation of federal income taxes to the parent company or receives payment from the parent company to
the extent that tax benefits are realized.

The Company adopted ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, as of January 1, 2009. A tax
position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is
the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized on examination. For
tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The adoption had no
effect on the Company's financial statement for the year ending December 31, 2016.

T'he Company recognizes penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. The Company is
subject to U.S. federal and Georgia state income tax audit for returns for the tax periods ending December
31, 2016, 2015, and 2014.

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents -For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, amounts due from banks, highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less, and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold for one-day
periods.

11. Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase -Securities sold under agreement to repurchase are secured
borrowings from customers and are treated as financing activities which are carried at the amounts at which
the securities will be subsequently reacquired as specified in the respective agreements.

12. Use of Estimates -The preparation of financial statements in confornlity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In
connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent
appraisals for significant collateral.

T'he Bank's loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, consumer
assets and business assets. Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its
debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on local economic conditions.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the
carrying amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition,
regulatory agencies, as an integral pazt of their examination process, periodically review the estimated
losses on loans. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their judgments
about information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, it is
reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change materially in the near term. However, the
amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be estimated.

13. Advertising Costs - It is the policy of the Company to expense advertising costs as they are incurred. The
Company does not engage in any direct-response advertising and accordingly has no advertising costs
reported as assets on its balance sheet. Amounts charged to advertising expense for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $160,191 and $143,003, respectively.

14. Earnings per Common Share -Basic earnings per share represents income available to common
shareholders divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive
potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the
assumed conversion. Potentially dilutive common shares are limited to preferred shares outstanding that
would be converted to common shares. As such, the average number of common shares outstanding used to
calculate diluted earnings per share equals the total number of common and preferred shares outstanding
less any shazes held in treasury.

Earnings per common share have been computed based on the following:

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015

Net income $ 6,893,751 $ 3,685,387

Less: Preferred stock dividends - -

Net income available to common shareholders $ 6,893,751 $ 3,685,387

Average number of common shares outstanding

Effect of dilutive options, warrants, etc.

Average number of common shares outstanding

used to calculate diluted earnings per common shaze

4,991,141 3,685,652

27,646,948 25,228,620

32,638,089 28,974,272
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15. Comprehensive Income - GAAP generally requires that recognized revenues, expenses, gains and losses be
included in net earnings. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the
consolidated balance sheets, such items along with net earnings, are components of comprehensive income.
The adoption of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 220, Comprehensive Income, had no effect on
the Compan}~s net income or shazeholders' equity. The Company presents comprehensive income in a
separate consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

16. Reclassi 'cations -Certain accounts in the prior-yeaz financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to the presentation of current-year financial statements.

17. Changes in Accounting Principles and Effects of New Accounting Pronouncements
ASU 2016-13 -Financial Instruments -Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments ("ASU-2016-13"). ASU 2016-13 significantly changes how entities will measure credit losses for
most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income.
The standard will replace the current incurred loss approach with an expected loss model, referred to as the
current expected credit loss ("CECL") model. The new standard will apply to financial assets subject to
credit losses and measured at amortized cost and certain off-balance-sheet credit exposures, which include,
but aze not limited to, loans, leases, held-to-maturity securities, loan commitments and financial guarantees.
ASU 2016-13 simplifies the accounting for purchased credit-impaired debt securities and loans and expands
the disclosure requirements regarding an entity's assumptions, models and methods for estimating the
allowance for loan and lease losses. ASU 2016-13 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted
for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Upon adoption, ASU 2016-13
provides for a modified retrospective transition by means of acumulative-effect adjustment to equity as of
the beginning of the period in which the guidance is effecrive. While the Company is currently evaluating
the impact this standard will have on the results of operations, financial position and disclosures, the
Company expects to recognize cone-time cumulative effect adjustment to the allowance for loan losses as of
the beginning of the first reporting period in which the new standard is effective.

ASU 2016-09 -Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting ("ASU 2016-09"). ASU 2016-09
simplifies various aspects of how share-based payments are accounted for and presented in the financial
statements. Under ASU 2016-09, companies will record all excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies as income
tax expense or benefit in the income statement and will no longer record excess tax benefits and certain tax
deficiencies in additional paid-in capital. The standard eliminates the requirement that excess tax benefits be
realized before companies can recognize them. The excess tax benefits will be reported as an operating
activity on the statement of cash flows, and the cash paid to a tax authority when shares are withheld to
satisfy a company's statutory income tax withholding obligation will be reported as a financing activity on
its statement of cash. In addition, the standard increases the amount an employer can withhold to cover
income taxes on awards and still qualify for the exception to liability classification for shares used to satisfy
the employer s statutory income tax withholding obligation. ASU 2016-09 permits companies to make an
accounting policy election for the impact of forfeitures on the recognition of expense for share-based
payment awards. Forfeitures can be estimated, as required today, or recognized when they occur. ASU
2016-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard
will have on the Company's results of operations, financial position and disclosures, but it is not expected to
have a material impact.

ASU 2016-02 -Leases (Topic 842) ("ASU 2016-02"). ASU 2016-02 amends the existing standazds for lease
accounting effectively requiring most leases be carried on the balance sheets of the related lessees by
requiring them to recognize aright-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability. ASU 2016-02 includes
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements intended to provide greater insight into the nature of
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an entity's leasing activities. The standard must be adopted using a modified retrospective transition with a
cumulative-effect adjustment to equity as of the beginning of the period in which it is adopted. ASU 2016-02
is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the Company's results of operations, financial position and disclosures, but it is not
expected to have a material impact.

ASU 2015-03 -Interest -Imputation of Interest ("ASU 2015-03"). ASU 2015-03 simplifies presentation of debt
issuance costs by requiring that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the debt liability, consistent with debt
discounts. ASU 2015-03is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2015, and early adoption is permitted. It should be applied on a retrospective
basis. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standazd will have on the Company's financial
position or disclosures, but it is not expected to have a material impact.

ASU 2015-02 -Consolidation (Topic 810) -Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis ("ASU 2015-02"). ASU
2015-02 includes amendments that are intended to improve targeted areas of consolidation for legal entities
including reducing the number of consolidation models from four to two and simplifying the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification. ASU 2015-02 is effective for annual and interim periods within those
annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015. 'The amendments may be applied retrospectively in
previously issued financial statements for one or more yeazs with a cumulative effect adjustment to retained
earnings as of the beginning of the first year restated. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an
interim period. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the Company's
results of operations, financial position or disclosures, but it is not expected to have a material impact.

ASU 2015-01 -Income Statement -Extraordinary and Unusual Items ("ASU 2015-01"). ASU 2015-01 eliminates
the concept of extraordinary items by no longer allowing companies to segregate an extraordinary item
from the results of operations, separately present an extraordinary item on the income statement, or disclose
income taxes or earnings-per-share data applicable to an extraordinary item. ASU 2015-01 is effective for
annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015, and
early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company's results of operations, financial position or disclosures.

ASU 2014-09 -Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASU 2014-09"). ASU 201409 provides guidance that
an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. ASU 2014-09 is effective prospectively, for annual and interim periods, beginning after
December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the
Company's results of operations, financial position or disclosures.
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B. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the balance sheet according to management's intent. The following
table reflects the amortized cost and estimated mazket values of investments in debt and equity securities held at
December 31, 2016 and 2015. In addition, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses aze disclosed as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The book and market values of securities available for sale were:

December 31, 2016

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of

U.S. Government obligations

U.S. Government agencies

State, county, and municipal securities

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

December 31, 2015

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of

U.S. Government obligations

State, county, and municipal securities

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Market Value

$ 30,511,329 $ 12,399 $ (81,871) $ 30,441,857

4,503,166 - (45,014) 4,458,152

500,000 2,908 - 502,908

35,514,495 15,307 (126,885) 35,402,917

12,322,485 14,913 (435,090) 11,902,308

$ 47,836,980 $ 30,220 $ (561,975) $ 47,305,225

$ 28,457,605 $ 8,740 $ (126,009) $ 28,340,336

500,000 12,873 - 512,873

28,957,605 21,613 (126,009) 28,853,209

15,704,751 35,447 (494,260) 15,245,938

$44,662,356 $ 57,060 $ (620,269) $ 44,099,147

The book and market values of securities held to maturity were:

December 31, 2016

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

December 31, 2015

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Market Value

$ 7,409,478 $ - $ (210,960) $ 7,198,518

$ 7,409,478 $ - $ (210,960) $ 7,198,518

$ 9,038,637 $ - $ (181,171) $ 8,857,466

$ 9,038,637 $ - $ (181,171) $ 8,857,466
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The book and market values of pledged securities were $37,930,620 and $37,267,339 at December 31, 2016,
respectively and $33,359,688 and $32,718,463 at December 31, 2015, respectively.

The amortized cost and estimated mazket value of debt securities held to maturity and available for sale at December
31, 2016 and 2015, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment
penalties.

Available for Sale Held to Maturity

December 31, 2016

Non-mortgage backed securities:

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years

Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Total non-mortgage backed securities

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

December 31, 2015

Non-mortgage backed securities:

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years

Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Total non-mortgage backed securities

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Market Value Cost Market Value

$ 13,486,885 $ 13,493,886 $ - $

22,027,610 21,909,031 - -

35,514,495 35,402,917 - -

12,322,485 11,902,308 7,409,478 7,198,518

$ 47,836,980 $ 47,305,225 $ 7,409,478 $ 7,198,518

Available for Sale Held to Maturity

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Market Value Cost Market Value

$ - $ - $ - $ -

28,957,605 28,853,209 - -

28,957,605 28,853,209 - -

15,704,751 15,245,938 9,038,637 8,857,466

$ 44,662,356 $ 44,099,147 $ 9,038,637 $ 8,857,466

The market value is established by an independent pricing service as of the approximate dates indicated. T'he
differences between the book value and market value reflect current interest rates and represent the potential loss (or
gain) had the portfolio been liquidated on that date. Security losses (or gains) are realized only in the event of
dispositions prior to maturity.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not hold investment securities of any single issuer, other than
obligations of the U. S. Treasury and other U. S. Government agencies, whose aggregate book value exceeded ten
percent of shareholders' equity.

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2016 and 2015, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, follows:
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December 31, 2016

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or More

Securities Available for Sale

Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated

Losses Market Value Losses Market Value

Non-mortgage backed debt securiries of

U.S. Government obligations

U.S. Government agencies

State, county, and municipal securities

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

Securities Held to Maturity

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

$ 81,871 $ 21,948,048 $ - $ -

45,014 4,458,152 -

126,885 26,406,200 - -

85,615 3,186,647 349,475 7,524,598

$ 212,500 $ 29,592,847 $ 349,475 $ 7,524,598

$ 34,933 $ 2,476,168 $ 176,027 $ 4,722,350

$ 34,933 $ 2,476,168 $ 176,027 $ 4,722,350

December 31, 2015

Securities Available for Sale

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or More

Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated

Losses Market Value Losses Market Value

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of

U.S. Government obligation

State, county, and municipal securities

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities

Residential mortgage backed securities

Total

Securities Held to Maturity

$ 126,009 $ 21,865,296 $ - $ -

126,009 21,865,296 - -

13,734 ],773,245 480,526 11,831,531

$ 139,743 $ 23,578,541 $ 480,526 $ 11,831,531

Residential mortgage backed securities $ 24,117. $ 3,175,911 $ 157,060 $ 5,681,555

Total $ 24,111 $ 3,175,911 $ 157,060 $ 5,681,555

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects
of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

At December 31, 2016, thirty-eight (38) debt securities have unrealized losses with aggregate depreciation of 1.71%
from the Company's amortized cost basis. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition, management considers
whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating
agencies have occurred, and industry analysts' reports. As management has the ability to hold debt securities until
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maturity, or for the foreseeable future if classified as available for sale, no declines are deemed to be other than
temporary.

Realized gains and losses are derived using the specific identification method for determining the cost of securities
sold. The following summarizes available for sale securities sold and related gains and losses recognized for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015

Proceeds from sales

Gross gains realized on sales

Gross losses realized on sales

Net gains on sales of securities

$ 7,510,326 $ 4,469,438

$ 55,001 $ 63,884

(654) -

$ 54,347 $ 63,884

C. L OA1vS

The Company engages in a full complement of lending activities, including real estate-related loans, commercial and
industrial loans and consumer installment loans. The majority of its lending activities are concentrated in real estate
loans. While risk of loss in the Company's portfolio is primarily tied to the credit quality of the various borrowers,
risk of loss may increase due to factors beyond the Company's control, such as local, regional and/or national
economic downturns. General conditions in the real estate market may also impact the relative risk in the real estate

portfolio.

Loans are stated at unpaid balances, net of unearned income and deferred loan fees. Balances within the major loans
receivable categories at December 31, 2016 and 2015 aze presented in the following table:

2016 2015

Commercial $ 246,904,500 $ 221,119,577

Residential real estate 19,278,390 17,832,086

Construction 20,625,333 19,626,615

Development, lot and land 13,285,379 15,855,970

Consumer 4,269,861 1,788,042

Total Loans 304,363,463 276,222,290

Other:

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts 284,558 386,789

Unearned loan fees (271,093) (287,875)

Allowance for loan losses (3,813,080) (3,294,54

Loans, net $ 300,563,848 $ 273,026,657

Overdrafts included in loans were $33,478 and $25,258 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Nonaccraal and Past Due Loans

A loan is placed on nonaccrual status when, in management's judgment, the collection of the interest income appears
doubtful. Interest receivable that has been accrued and is subsequently detern►ined to have doubtful collectability is
charged to interest income. Interest on loans that are classified as non-accrual is recognized when received. Past due
loans are loans whose principal or interest is past due 90 days or more.

The following tables present an analysis of past due loans and loans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015:

As of December 31, 2016

Past Due and Still Accruing

Accruing and > Than 90 Total

< 30 Days Past 30-59 Days 60-89 Days Days Past Accruing

Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due

Commercial $ 246,030,480 $ 498,87.9 $ - $ - $ 498,819

Residential real estate 18,929,491 15,351 166,016 - 181,367

Construction 20,625,333 - - - -

Development, lot and land 13,285,379 - - - -

Consumer 4,269,860 - - - -

Total $ 303,140,543 $ 514,170 $ 166,016 $ - $ 680,186

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts

Unearned loan fees

As of December 31, 2015

Non-accrual Total Loans

$ 375,201 $ 246,904,500

167,532 19,278,390

- 20,625,333

- 13,285,379

1 4,269,861

$ 542,734 304,363,463

284,558

(271,093)

$ 304,376,928

Past Due and Still Accruing

Accruing and > Than 90 Total

< 30 Days Past 30-59 Days 60-89 Days Days Past Accruing

Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Non-accrual

Commercial $220,239,362 $ 348,128 $ - $ - $ 348,128 $ 532,087

Residential real estate 17,301,821 334,270 - - 334,270 195,995

Construction 19,626,615 - - - - -

Development, lot and land 15,855,970 - - - - -

Consumer 1,759,563 ] 8,747 9,039 - 27,786 693

Total $ 274,783,331 $ 701,145 $ 9,039 $ - $ 7]0,184 $ 728,775

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts

Uneazned loan fees

Total Loans

$221,119,577

17,832,086

19,626,615

15,855,970

1,788,042

276,222,290

386,789

(287,875)

$ 276,321,204
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Impaired Loans

Loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be
unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of the loan agreements. Impaired
loans include loans on nonaccrual status and troubled debt restructurings. If a loan is deemed impaired, a specific
valuation allowance is allocated, if necessary, so that the loan is reported net, at the present value of estimated future
cash flows using the loan's existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the
collateral. Interest payments on impaired loans are typically applied to principal unless collectability of the principal

amount is reasonably assured, in wtuch case interest is recognized on a cash basis.

The following is a summary of average balances and interest relating to impaired loans:

As of December 31, 2016

Interest Income

Average Interest Income Recognized on

Investment in Recognized on Cash Basis on

Impaired Loans Impaired Loans Impaired Loans

Commercial $ 21,024,012 $ 824,952 $ 812,055

Residential real estate 149,858 7,606 7,458

Construction - - -

Development, lot and land 2,917,840 97,806 97,499

Consumer - - -

Total $ 24,091,710 $ 930,364 $ 917,012

As of December 31, 2015

Interest Income

Average Interest Income Recognized on

Investment in Recognized on Cash Basis on

Impaired Loans Impaired Loans Impaired Loans

Commercial $ 23,021,585 $ 830,445 $ 827,477

Residential real estate 368,772 10,943 11,115

Construction - - -

Development, lot and land 2,200,409 88,873 88,869

Consumer - - -

Total $ 25,590,766 $ 930,261 $ 927,461
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The following is an analysis of information pertaining to impaired loans:

As of December 31, 2016

Commercial

Residential real estate

Construction

Development, lot and land

Consumer

Total

Commercial

Residential real estate

Construction

Development, lot and land

Consumer

Total

Credit Quality Indicators

Rernrded Recorded

Unpaid Total Investment Investment Total

Principal With No With Recorded Related

Balance Allowance Allowance Investment Allowance

$ 19,914,126 $ 14,404,285 $ 5,656,321 $ 20,060,606 $ 163,731

144,429 100,508 44,070 144,578 1,570

2,702,048 2,538,543 164,413 2,702,956 8,100

$ 22,760,603 $ 17,043,336 $ 5,864,804 $22,908,140 $ 173,401

As of December 31, 2015

Recorded Recorded

Unpaid Total Investment Investment Total

Principal With No With Recorded Related

Balance Allowance Allowance Investrnent Allowance

$ 22,129,169 $ 15,804,285 $ 6,183,133 $ 21,987,418 $ 148,267

155,294 41,462 113,675 155,137 45,321

3,137,071 2,957,724 175,000 3,132,724 1,241

$ 25,421,534 $ 18,803,471 $ 6,471,808 $ 25,275,279 $ 194,829

The Company uses a four category risk grading system to assign a risk grade to each loan in the portfolio. T'he
following is a description of the general characteristics of the grades:

Pass
Represents loans with satisfactory or better borrowing relationships with the Bank. Typically supported by
borrowers with established history and adequate cash flow to support the debt or the related collateral is valued so
that no significant risk of loss has been identified by the Bank.

~ecial Mention
Represents loans with potential weaknesses which may, if not identified and corrected, weaken the asset or

inadequately protect the Bank's position at some future date.
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Substandard
Loans that are inadequately protected by the net worth and cash flow capacity of the borrower or of the collateral
pledged against the loan. Credit risk is related to the possibility of some loss of principal or interest if deficiencies are
not corrected.

Doubtful
Loans which are inadequately protected by the net worth of the borrower or of the collateral pledged and repayment
in full is improbable on the basis of existing facts, values and conditions. A full or partial reserve is recommended.

The following tables present the loan portfolio by risk grade as of December 31, 2016 and 2015:

As of December 31, 2016

Special

Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Commercial $241,711,538 $ 4,052,666 $ 1,140,296 $ - $246,904,500

Residential real estate 18,839,199 271,145 168,046 - 19,278,390

Construction 20,625,333 - - - 20,625,333

Development, lot and land 12,165,604 - 1,119,775 - 13,285,379

Consumer 4,262,4% 1,996 5,369 - 4,269,861

Total $297,604,170 $ 4,325,807 $ 2,433,486 $ - 304,363,463

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts 284,558

Unearned loan fees (2~1,p93~

Total Loans $304,376,928

As of December 31, 2015

Special

Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Commercial $210,578,870 $ 8,488,389 $ 2,052,318 $ - $221,119,577

Residential real estate 17,435,780 182,391 213,915 - 17,832,086

Construction 19,626,615 - - - 19,626,615

Development, lot and land 14,447,169 - 1,408,801 - 15,855,970

Consumer 1,769,598 5,106 13,338 - 1,788,042

Total $263,858,032 $ 8,675,886 $ 3,688,372 $ - 276,222,290

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts 386,789

Uneazned loan fees (2g~,g~5)

Total Loans $276,321,204
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Troubled Debt Restructurings (TDRs)

Loans are considered to have been modified in a TDR when due to a borrower s financial difficulty, the Company
makes certain concessions to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider for new debt with similar risk
characteristics. Modifications may include interest rate reductions, principal or interest forgiveness, forbearance, and
other actions intended to minimize economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of the collateral. Each
potential loan modification is reviewed individually and the terms of the loan aze modified to meet the borrower s
specific circumstances at a point in time. Not all loan modifications are TDRs. Generally, anon-accrual loan that has
been modified in a TDR remains on non-accrual status for a period of 6 months to demonstrate that the borrower is
able to meet the terms of the modified loan. However, performance prior to the modification, or significant events
that coincide with the modification, are included in assessing whether the borrower can meet the new terms and may
result in the loan being returned to accrual status at the time of loan modification or after a shorter performance
period. If the borrower s ability to meet the revised payment schedule is uncertain, the loan remains on non-accrual
status. Once a loan is modified in a troubled debt restructuring it is accounted for as an impaired loan, regardless of
its accrual status, until the loan is paid in full, sold or charged off.

Loan modifications are reviewed and approved by the Company's senior lending staff, who then determine whether
the loan meets the criteria for a TDR. Generally, the types of concessions granted to borrowers that are evaluated in
determining whether the loan is classified as a TDR include:

• Interest rate reductions -Occur when the stated interest rate is reduced to a nonmarket rate or a rate the
borrower would not be able to obtain elsewhere under similar circumstances.

• Amortization or maturity date changes -Result when the amortization period of the loan is extended
beyond what is considered a normal amortization period for loans of similar type with similar collateral.

Principal reductions -These are often the result of commercial real estate loan workouts where two new
notes are created. The primary note is underwritten based upon our normal underwriting standards and is
structured so that the projected cash flows are sufficient to repay the contractual principal and interest of the
newly restructured note. The terms of the secondary note vary by situation and often involve that note
being charged-off, or the principal and interest payments being deferred until after the primary note has
been repaid. In situations where a portion of the note is charged-off during modification there is often no
specific reserve allocated to those loans. This is due to the fact that the amount of the charge-off usually
represents the excess of the original loan balance over the collateral value, and the Company has determined
there is no additional exposure on those loans.

The following presents TDRs by loan class, classified as accrual and nonaccrual:

December 31, 2016

Accruing Nonaccrual Total

Commercial $ - $ 1 ~a 1

Residential real estate - - -

Construction - - -

Development, lot and land 163,506 - 163,506

Consumer - - -

Total TDR's $ 163,506 $ 1 $ 163,507
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December 31, 2015

Commercial

Residential real estate

Construction

Development, lot and land

Consumer

Total TDR's

Accruing Nonaccrual Total

$ 19,736,664 $ 2 $ 19,736,666

41,461 - 41,461

3,132,724 - 3,132,724

$ 22,910,849 $ 2 $ 22,910,851

The following presents TDRs by loan class, classified separately as either currently paying under restructured terms

or defaulted under restricted terms as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. Loans modified in a troubled debt

restructuring are considered to be in default once the loan becomes 30 days past due.

December 31, 2016

Loans Currently Paying Loans Defaulted Under

Under Restructured Restructured Terms

# Balance # Balance

Commercial - $ - 1 $ 1

Residential real estate - - -

Construction - - -

Development, lot and land 1 163,506 - -

Consumer - - - -

Total 1 $ 163,506 1 $ 1

Loans Currently Paying Loans Defaulted Under

Under Restructured Restructured Terms

# Balance # Balance

Commercial 29 $ 19,736,664 2 $ 2

Residential real estate 1 41,461 - -

Construction - - - -

Development, lot and land 3 3,132,724 - -

Consumer - - - -

Total 33 $ 22,910,849 2 $ 2
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The following presents TDRs by type of concession, classified as accrual or nonaccrual:

December 31, 2016

Type of Concession:

Forbearance of interest

Forgiveness of principal

Payment modification only

A&B note structure

Rate reduction, forbearance of interest

Rate reduction, forgiveness of principal

Rate reduction, payment modification

Total

Accruing Loans Non accruing Loans

# Balance # Balance

- $ - - $ -

- - 1 1

1 163,506 - -

1 $ 163,506 1 $ 1

December 31, 2015

Type of Concession:

Forbearance of interest

Forgiveness of principal

Payment modification only

A&B note structure

Rate reduction, forbearance of interest

Rate reduction, forgiveness of principal

Rate reduction, payment modification

Total

Accruing Loans Non accruing Loans

# Balance # Balance

- $ - - $ -

1 41,461 - -

3 365,424 -

2 549,702 2 2

1 2,142,825 - -

1 2,517,839 - -

25 17,293,598 - -

33 $ 22,910,849 2 $ 2

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had a balance of $163,508 and $22,910,851, respectively, in troubled
debt restructurings. 'The Company has recorded $523,778 and $583,748 in previous charge-offs on such loans as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company's balance in the allowance for loan losses allocated to such
troubled debt restructurings was $8,101 and $134,287 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. T'he Company
had no unfunded commitments to lend to a customer that has a troubled debt restructured loan as of December 31,
2016.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents a reserve for inherent losses in the loan portfolio. T'he adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses is evaluated periodically based on a review of all significant loans, with a particular
emphasis on non-accruing, past due and other loans that management believes might be potentially impaired or
warrant additional attention. The Company segregates the loan portfolio by type of loan and utilizes this segregation
in evaluating exposure to risks within the portfolio. In addition, based on internal reviews and external reviews
performed by independent auditors and regulatory authorities, the Company further segregates the loan portfolio by
loan grades based on an assessment of risk for a particular loan or group of loans. Certain reviewed loans are
assigned specific allowances when a review of relevant data determines that a general allocation is not sufficient or
when the review affords management the opportunity to fine tune the amount of exposure in a given credit. In
establishing allowances, management considers historical loan loss experience but adjusts this data with a significant
emphasis on data such as current loan quality trends, current economic conditions and other factors in the markets
where the Company operates. Factors considered include, among others, current valuations of real estate in their
markets, unemployment rates, the effect of weather conditions on agricultural related entities and other significant
local economic events.

The Company has developed a methodology for determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses which is
monitored by the Company's Senior Vice President &Risk Management Officer. Loans are segregated by loan type
and historical loss rates for each type are used to estimate a general reserve percentage for loans that are not
considered impaired and assigned specific reserves. Procedures provide for the assignment of a risk rating for every
loan included in the total loan portfolio. The risk rating schedule provides seven ratings of which four ratings are
classified as pass ratings and three ratings are classified as criticized ratings. Loans classified as substandard or
below are reviewed on a quarterly basis by management for potential impairment. As a result of these evaluations,
loans deemed impaired may be assigned specific reserve allocations and excluded from general reserve pools. Past
due loans are assigned risk ratings based on the number of days past due. The calculation of the allowance for loan
losses, including underlying data and assumptions, is reviewed regularly by executive management and the Board of
Directors.
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The following tables detail activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the year ended December
31, 2016 and 2015. Allocation of a portion of the allowance to one category of loans does not preclude its availability
to absorb losses in other categories.

As of December 31, 2016

Residential Development,

Allowance for credit losses: Commerical Real Fstate Construction lot and land Consumer Unallocated Total

Beginning Balance $ 1,788,002 $ 198,611 $ 700,148 $ 272,105 $ 15,681 $ 320,000 $ 3,294,547

Chargeoffs (48,073) (1,046) - - (3,122) - (52,241)

Recoveries 49,175 101,599 - - - - 150,774

Provision 556,513 (129,142) (107,711) 23,379 16,961 60,000 420,000

Ending Balance $ 2,345,617 $ 170,022 $ 592,437 $ 295,484 $ 29,520 $ 380,000 $ 3,813,080

Period-end amount allocated to:

Loans individually evaluated

for impairment
Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment

Ending balance

$ 163,731 $ 1,570 $ - $ 8,100 $ - $ - $ 173,401

2,181,886 168,452 592,437 287,384 29,520 380,000 3,639,679

$ 2,345,617 $ 170,022 $ 592,437 $ 295,484 $ 29,520 $ 380,000 $ 3,813,080

Loans:

Individually evaluated for

impairment $ 20,060,606 $ 144,578 $ - $ 2,702,956 $ - $
Collectively evaluated for

impairment 226,843,894 19,133,812 20,625,333 10,582,423 4,269,861

Ending balance $246,904,500 $ 19,278,390 $ 20,625,333 $ 13,285,379 $ 4,269,861 $

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts

Unearned loan fees

Total loans

- $22,908,140

~R'I dSS ~~4

304,363,463

284,558

(271,093)

$304,376,928
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As of December 31, 2015

Residential Acquisition &

Allowance for credit losses: Commerical Real Estate Construction Development Consumer Unallocated Total

Beginning Balance $ 2,256,608 $ 417,670 $ 99,357 $ 175,902 $ 23,380 $ - $ 2,972,917

Chargeoffs (426,365) - - (532,955) (3,903) - (963,223)

Recoveries 65,448 19,405 - - - - 84,853

Provision (107,689) (238,464) 600,791 629,158 (3,796) 320,000 1,200,000

Ending Balance $ 7.,788,002 $ 198,611 $ 700,148 $ 272,105 $ 15,681 $ 320,000 $ 3,294,547

Period-end amount allocated to:

Loans individually evaluated

for impairment $ 148,267 $ 45,321 $ - $ 1,241 $ - $ - $ 194,829

Loans collecrively evaluated

for impairment 1,639,735 153,290 700,148 270,864 15,681 320,000 3,099,718

Ending balance $ 1,788,002 $ 198,611 $ 700,148 $ 272,105 $ 15,681 $ 320,000 $ 3,294,547

Loans:

Individually evaluated for

impairment $ 21,987,418 $ 155,137 $ - $ 3,132,724 $ - $ - $25,275,279

Collectively evaluated for

impairment 199,132,159 17,676,949 19,626,615 12,723,246 1,788,042 - 250,947,011

Ending balance $221,119,577 $ 17,832,086 $ 19,626,615 $ 15,855,970 $ 1,788,042 $ - 276,222,290

Overdraft, in-process, and suspense accounts 386,789

Unearned loan fees (287,875)

Total loans $276,321,204

D. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Land

Buildings and improvements

Equipment, furniture and fixtures

Construction in process

Total

Less -accumulated depreciation

Bank premises and equipment, net

2016 2015

$ 1,074,885 $ 1,074,885

6,309,246 6,735,623

4,540,869 6,790,173

330,104 16,563

12,255,104 14,617,244

(5,867,602) (8,551,849)

$ 6,387,502 $ 6,065,395

Depreciation included in operating expenses amounted to $487,481 and $489,159 for the years ended December 31,

2016 and 2015, respectively.
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E. OTHER REAL ESTATE

As of December 31, 2016 the Bank's reported balance of other real estate was $7,018,986. No properties held as of
December 31, 2016 were classified as residential real estate

F. CASH VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE

T'he Bank has established abank-owned life insurance (BOLI) program under which single-premium, split-dollar,
whole-life insurance contracts are purchased on certain eligible officers. Initial investments in the policies are non-
deductible for income tax purposes and the related investment income and death benefits are non-taxable when
received. Death benefits aze divided among the Bank and beneficiaries designated by the insured officer. The cash
surrender value of these policies was $8,661,760 and $8,323,655 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Income
earned on the cash surrender value of these policies was $338,105 and $333,106 for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

G. DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits that meet or exceed $250,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $10,962,799
and $12,928,804, respectively.

At December 31, 2016, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

2017 $ 58,115,501

2018 22,579,064

2019 2,912,540

2020 3,264,824

2021 and thereafter 2,719,444

Total time deposits $ 89,591,373

H. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Company classifies the sales of securities under agreements to repurchase as short-term borrowings. The
amounts received under these agreements are reflected as a liability in the Company's consolidated balance sheets
and the securities underlying these agreements are included in investment securities in the Company's consolidated
balance sheets. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, all securities sold under agreements to repurchase mature on a daily
basis. The mazket value of the securities fluctuate on a daily basis due to market conditions. The Company monitors
the market value of the securities underlying these agreements on a daily basis and is required to transfer additional
securities if the market value of the securities fail below the repurchase agreement price. The Company maintains an
unpledged securities portfolio that it believes is sufficient to protect against a decline in the market value of the
securities sold under agreements to repurchase.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company reported securities sold under repurchase agreements of $13,119,079
and $11,724,074, respectively. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the investrnent securities underlying these agreements
were residential mortgage-backed securities and U.S. Treasury notes.
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I. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCE AND LINES OF CREDIT

The Bank had a balance of $5,000,000 outstanding on its line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) as of

December 31, 2016. The Bank had no funds advanced on its line of credit of from the FHLB as of December 31, 2015.

The available line amount is based upon eligible mortgage loans available for pledge as well as FHLB stock with a

carrying value of $567,900 at December 31, 2016. The Bank is required to maintain a minimum investment in FHLB

stock of the greater of 1% of total mortgage assets or .18% of total assets while the advance agreement is in effect. As
of December 31, 2016, the total lendable collateral value of the line was $60.1 million. The Bank continues to work to

identify loans that can be added to the pool of loans used for pledging with the FHLB.

Investment in stock of a Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) is required for every federally insured institution that

utilizes its services. FHLB stock is considered restricted, as defined in FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic

320, Investments -Debt and Equity Securities; accordingly, the provisions of ASC Topic 320 are not applicable to this

investment. The FHLB stock is reported in the consolidated financial statements at cost. Dividend income is

recognized when earned.

I• LONG TERM NOTES PAYABLE

The Company executed a promissory agreement in the amount of $3,378,500 with the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation (FDIC) on July 28, 2014 with a fixed interest rate of 5.5% with quarterly compounding of accrued but

unpaid interest. Principal and interest payments are due quarterly through the maturity date of July 28, 2019. Due to

current regulatory restrictions of the Company and its Bank subsidiary preventing dividend payments, the

agreement was made with the provision that no interest or principal payments shall be due until the Company and

its subsidiary are released from such regulatory prohibitions. The outstanding principal balance due was $3,865,833

and $3,656,473 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

K PREFERRED STOCK

As of December 31, 2016 there were a total of 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized with 9,200 shares
outstanding. The Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to issue preferred stock and to fix and state voting

powers, designations, preferences or other special rights of such shares and the qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof, subject to regulatory approval but without stockholder approval.

During 2014, the Boazd authorized the issuance of 9,200 shares of Series A preferred stock. The holders of the
preferred stock are entitled to 6% non-cumulative dividends. On December 31, 2018, each share of Series A preferred

stock will convert into 2,000 shares of the Company's common stock based on the initial conversion price of $0.50 per

share of common stock.

Included in the 2014 preferred stock issue were 1,200 shares with par value of $1,000 in conjunction with redemption
of $1 million of trust preferred securities (as described in Note J). These shares were issued without consideration of

wazrants.

The remaining 8,000 shazes with a related par value of $1,000 were issued as mandatory convertible preferred stock.
For each share of preferred stock purchased investors received warrants to purchase an additiona12,000 shares of the

Company's common stock with a par value of $0.10. The related warrants are exercisable for a term of five years from

the date of issuance at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.
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During 2014, 16,000,000 warrants were issued in conjunction with related preferred stock. Each warrant has an
exercise price of $0.50. As of December 31, 2016, no warrants were exercised.

L. BOOK VALUE PER COMMON SHARE

The book value of the Company's outstanding common shares as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is calculated as
follows:

As of December 31,

Total shazeholder's equity

Less: Preferred equity

Shareholder's equity available to common shares

Common shares outstanding

Book value per common share

2016 2015

$ 33,652,523 $ 26,699,312

a inn nnn a inn nnn

$ 24,452,523 $ 17,499,312

5,190,223 4,086,223

$ 4.71 $ 4.28

The following table presents the estimated book value per common share as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 assuming

the conversion of preferred shares to common stock and exercise of all outstanding warrants:

As of December 31,

Total shareholder's equity

Effect of excercised warrants and conversion of

preferred shares

Projected shareholders equity with exercise of warrants

Common shares outstanding

Effect of converted preferred shares

Effect of exercised warrants

Common shares outstanding after exercised warrants

and conversion of preferred shares

Book value per share

2016 2015

$ 33,652,523 $ 26,699,312

Q nnn nnn a nnn nnn

$ 41,652,523 $ 34,6HH,312

5,190,223 4,086,223

18, 400, 000 18, 400, 000

16,000,000 16,000,000

39,590,223 38,486,223

$ 1.05 $ 0.90
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M. I~vCOME TA~s

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Current tax benefit

Deferred tax expense

Total provision for income taxes

Change in valuation allowance

Net benefit of income taxes

Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015

$ (1,333,310) $ -

1,612,596 816,379

279,286 816,379

(5,382,630) (2,195,815)

$ (5,103,344) $ (1,379,436)

Deferred income taxes aze reflected for certain timing differences between book and taxable income and will be
reduced in future years as these timing differences reverse. The reasons for the difference between the actual tax
expense and tax computed at the federal income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

Tax on pretax income at statutory rate

Tax-exempt interest income

Life insurance income

Change in valuation allowance

Other

Total

Net effective tax rate

2016 2015

$ 608,739 $ 789,027

(7,129) (7,129)

(114,956) (113,256)

(5,382,630) (2,195,815)

(207,368) 147,737

$ (5,103,344) $ (1,379,436)

-285.0% -59.8%
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The sources and tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred income tax assets
(liabilities) are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015

Deferred Income Tax Assets:

Unrealized losses on securities available for sale $ 186,114 $ 197,123

Deferred compensation 429,150 468,178

Other real estate 1,545,949 2,394,706

Net operating losses 4,271,192 4,991,647

State tax credits 481,722 435,733

Deferred loan fees 92,172 115,150

Provision for loan losses 51,056 -

Other 142,859 279,466

Total deferred tax assets 7,200,214 8,882,003

Less: valuation allowance - (5,382,630)

Net deferred tax assets $ 7,200,214 $ 3,499,373

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:

Depreciation

Provision for loan losses

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax asset

$ 188,008 $ 138,258

- 107,934

- 1,333,310

188,008 1,579,502

$ 7,012,206 $ 1,919,871

N. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401 (k) Profit Sharing Plan

T'he Company has atax-qualified defined contribution profit sharing plan (the "Plan') for the benefit of its

employees. Effective October 31, 2013, the Company rolled its Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) into the 401k

plan. All full-time employees and part-time employees who work 1,000 hours or more become eligible to pazticipate

under the Plan after completing one year of service. Under the Plan, employees may voluntarily elect to defer up to

15% of their compensation, not to exceed applicable limits. Under normal circumstances the Company matches $0.25

for each $1.00 with the matching contributions vesting after the first year at a rate of 20% per year with full vesting

after five years. Additionally, the Company may contribute an annual discretionary contribution to the Plan based

upon a number of factors, such as the Company's retained earnings, profits, regulatory capital, and employee

performance. The Company's matching contribution totaled $81,619 and $69,052 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Stock Option Plan

The Company sponsored a stock option plan (the "1995 Option Plan") whereby 486,067 authorized shazes of

common stock were reserved for issuance by the Company upon exercise of stock options granted to officers,

directors and employees of the Company from time to time. Options constituted both incentive stock options and

non-qualified stock options. Options awarded to officers and directors are exercisable at a rate of 20% annually with

the first 20% exercisable on the one-year anniversary of the date of grant. Any shares subject to an award, which
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expire or are terminated unexercised, will be retired. T'he 1995 Option Plan had a term of ten years. The exercise price
per share for non-qualified and incentive stock options shall be the price as determined by an option committee, but
not less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant.

In 2000, the Company and shareholders approved a second stock option plan (the "2000 Option Plan') whereby
270,000 shares of common stock (either authorized shares or shares purchased in the market) were available to be
granted to officers, directors, and employees of the Company from time to time. Options constitute both incentive
stock options and non-qualified stock options. Terms of the 2000 Option Plan are similar to that of the 1995 Option
Plan with the exception that all options granted under this plan vest immediately following the date of the grant, but
require a six month holding period.

In 2007, the Company and shareholders approved a third stock option plan (the "2007 Option Plan') whereby
400,000 shares of common stock (either authorized shares or shares purchased in the market) were available to be
granted to officers, directors, and employees of the Company from time to time. Options constitute both incentive
stock options and non-qualified stock options. Terms of the 2007 Option Plan are sunilar to that of the 2000 Option
Plan.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015 there were no shares of common stock available for grant under the 1995 or 2000
Option Plans. At December 31, 2016 and 2015 there were 162,334 and 222,334 shares available, respectively, under
the 2007 Option Plan.

Stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Contractual

Shares Price Term

Oustanding at beginning of year 219,341 $ 4.31

Granted 60,000 0.75

Exercised - -

Forfeited (7,760) 18.49

Expired (33,488) 12.15

Outstanding at end of year 238,093 $ 7..81 6.75

Options exercisable at year-end 235,593 $ 1.82 6.75

Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during year $ 0.68
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2015

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Contractual

Shares Price Term

Oustanding at beginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at end of year

Options exercisable at year-end

266,746 $ 6.78

35,000 0.75

(12,706) 0.12

(4,524) 8.42

(65,175) 12.96

219,341 $ 4.31 5.69

219,341 $ 4.31 5.69

Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during year $ 0.71

As of December 31, 2016, of the 238,093 options issued, 235,593 were vested and excisable.

Life Insurance Policies

T'he Company adopted a nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan (SERF) to provide retirement benefits
to certain of the Company's executive officers and to provide death benefits for the designated beneficiaries. Under
this plan, single-premium, split-dollar, whole-life insurance contracts were purchased on certain executive officers.
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company incurred expenses of $91,762 and $94,841,
respectively, in connection with this plan.

In 2012, the plan agreements relating to the SERF were amended to provide for the distribution of a portion of the
retirement benefit in the form of Company stock as opposed to cash based upon a share price of $0.72 per share as of
the amendment date. 'The result of the amendment was the conversion of $1.7 million of the existing accrued deferred
compensation obligation payable from cash to stock. The portion of the obligation payable as stock is treated as an
equity award as opposed to a liability award under ASC 480-10-25; accordingly, no liability is recorded under ASC
718-20-55 implementation guidance and no expense beyond the conversion value (i.e., the grant date value of the
promised stock) is recognized in accordance with equity accounting rules of ASC 718-10-35. 'The reducrion in the
previously accrued deferred compensation liability was recorded in 2012 as a credit to retained earnings.

O. LIMITATION ON DIVIDENDS

T'he Board of Directors of any state-chartered bank in Georgia may declare and pay cash dividends on its outstanding
capital stock without any request for approval of the Bank's regulatory agency if the following conditions are met:

1) Total classified assets at the most recent examination of the bank do not exceed eighty (80) percent of equity
capital.

2) The aggregate amount of dividends declared in the calendar year does not exceed fifty (50) percent of the prior
yeaz's net income.
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3) The ratio of equity capital to adjusted total assets shall not be less than six (6) percent.

As of December 31, 2016, the amount available for distribution as dividends in the subsequent year based on these
guidelines was $3,574,000. However, the Bank was subject to an informal agreement with the FDIC and Georgia
Department of Banking and Finance, which would restrict payment of any dividends that would result in a reduction
of its Tier 1 leverage capital below 8% and its total capital ratio below 10%, unless prior written approval from
Supervisory Authorities is received.

P. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

T'he Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk and interest rate risk in excess
of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. T'he contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the
extent of involvement the Bank has in those particular financial instruments.

T'he Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does
for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The Bank does require collateral or other security to support financial instruments with credit risk.

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Financial instruments whose contract amount represent credit risk:

Commitments to extend credit $ 44,316,450 $ 29,916,584

Standby letters of credit 1,581,997 1,129,004

Total $ 45,898,441 $ 31,045,588

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. T'he amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Bank upon
extension of credit is based on management's credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer
to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements,
including commercial paper, bond financing and similar transactions. All letters of credit are due within one year of
the original commitment date. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
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Q. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities that
are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

R. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Company, through the Bank, has direct and indirect loans outstanding to or
for the benefit of certain executive officers and directors. These loans were made on substantially the same terms as

those prevailing, at the time made, for comparable loans to other persons and did not involve more than the normal
risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. The following is a summary of activity during the year

ended December 31, 2016 with respect to such loans to these individuals:

Balances at December 31, 2015

New loans

Repayments

Balances at December 31, 2016

2,832,714

107,806

(245,492)

$ 2,695,028

The Bank also had deposits from these related pazties of approximately $1,306,077 at December 31, 2016.

`The Bank paid legal fees during 2016 and 2015 to Edwin Kemp, Jr., Attorney at Law, which is a legal firm with a Bank

director serving as an active partner. Payments totaling $18,000 and $18,000 for legal services were recognized during

the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

S. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

T'he fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties, other

than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many

instances, there are no quoted market prices for the company's various financial instruments. In cases where quoted

market prices are not available, fair value is based on discounted cash flows or other valuation techniques. These

techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future

cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.

The accounting standard for disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments excludes certain financial

instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value

amounts presented may not necessarily represent the underlying fair value of the Company.

'The fair value hierarchy describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Leve11-Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets.

Level 2 -Valuation is based upon observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for

similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or

can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 -Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and

that are significant to the fair value of assets or liabilities.
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Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities which are either recorded or
disclosed at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For disclosure purposes for cash, due from banks and federal funds sold, the carrying amount is a reasonable
estimate of fair value.

Investment Securities Available, r Sale
The fair value of securities available for sale is determined by various valuation methodologies. Where quoted
market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If
quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of
securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed
securities issued by government sponsored enterprises and municipal bonds. The level 2 fair value pricing is
provided by an independent third-party and is based upon similar securities in an active market. In certain cases
where Leve11 or Leve12 inputs aze not available, securities are classified within Leve13 of the hierarchy and include
certain residual municipal securities and other less liquid securities.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank stock approximates carrying value, as there is no ready market for such
investments.

Oilier Investments
For disclosure purposes the carrying value of other investments approximates fair value.

Loans
The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan is
considered impaired and an allowance for loan losses is established. Loans for which it is probable that payment of
interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered
impaired. Once a loan is identified as individually impaired, management measures impairment based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, except that as a practical
expedient, a creditor may measure impairment based on a loan's observable market price, or the fair value of the
collateral if repayment of the loan is dependent upon the sale of the underlying collateral. Those impaired loans not
requiring an allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the
recorded investments in such loans. In accordance with ASC 820, impaired loans where an allowance is established
based on the fair value of collateral require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the
collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the impaired
loan as nonrecurring Leve12. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of
the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company
records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3.

Casl1 Surrender Value of Bank Owned Life Insurance
For disclosure purposes, for cash surrender value of life insurance, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair
value.

Other Real Estate and Foreclosed Assets
Foreclosed assets aze adjusted to fair value, less cost to sell, upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets.
Subsequently, foreclosed assets are carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Fair value is based upon
independent market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management's estimation of the value of the
collateral. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value,
the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or
management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no
observable market price, the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Leve13.
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Deposits
For disclosure purposes, the fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts and money market

deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date, while the fair value of fixed maturity certificates of

deposit is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using current rates at which comparable certificates would

be issued.

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase and Other Borrowinsts
The carrying amount of variable rate borrowings and securities sold under repurchase agreements approximates fair

value. The fair value of fixed rate other borrowings is estimated based on discounted contractual cash flows using

the current incremental borrowing rates for similar borrowing arrangements.

Short-term and long-term borrowings
For disclosure purposes, for borrowings at a fixed rate, the fair value of the borrowing is estimated using discounted

cash flows, based on the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. For

borrowings at a variable rate, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Commitments to Extend Credit and Stand Letters of Credit
Because commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are made using variable rates and have short

maturities, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

'The table below presents the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as

of December 31, 2016 and 2015, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierazchy within which those measurements

fall.

December 31, 2016

Levell Leve12 Leve13 Total

ASSETS:

Investment securities available for sale

U.S. Government obligations $ - $ 30,441,857 $ - $ 30,441,857

U.S. Government agencies - 4,458,152 - 4,458,152

State and political subdivisions - 502,908 - 502,908

Residential mortgage backed securities - 11,902,308 - 11,902,308

Total investment securities $ - $47,305,225 $ - $47,305,225

December 31, 2015

Leven Leve12 Leve13 Total

ASSETS:

Investment securities available for sale

U.S. Government obligations $ - $28,340,336 $ - $28,340,336

State and political subdivisions - 512,873 - 512,873

Residential mortgage backed securities - 15,245,938 - 15,245,938

Total investment securities $ - $44,099,147 $ - $44,099,147
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Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These include assets that are measured at the lower
of cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the end of the period. The table below presents the
Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

December 31, 2016

Leve11 Leve12 L.eve13 Total

Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 22,734,739 $22,734,739

Other real estate - - 7,018,986 7,018,986

$ - $ - $ 29,753,725 $ 29,753,725

December 31, 2015

Levell Leve12 Leve13 Total

Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 25,080,450 $ 25,080,450

Other real estate - - 9,154,905 9,154,905

$ - $ - $ 34,235,355 $ 34,235,355

The following table shows significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of level 3 assets and
liabilities:

Fair Value at

Measurements: December 31, 2016 Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range

Nonrecurring:

Third party appraisals, Collateral discounts,

Impaired loans $ 22,734,739 discounted cash flows, estimated selling expenses, 0°k - 27%

and loan pricing and discount rates

Foreclosed assets $ 7,018,986 Third party appraisals
Collateral discounts and

4% - 75%
esrimated selling costs
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Fair Value at

Measurements: December 31, 2015 Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range

Nonrecurring:

Impaired loans $

Foreclosed assets $

Third party appraisals,

25,080,450 discounted cash flows,

and loan pricing

9,154,905 Third party appraisals

Collateral discounts,

estimated selling expenses, 0% - 43%

and discount rates

Collateral discounts and
4%-75%

estimated selling costs

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company's financial instruments, not shown elsewhere in these
financial statements, were as follows:

2016

Assets:

Cash and short-term investments

Loans

Liabilities:

Deposits

FHLB borrowings

Note Payable

T. CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION

2015

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

$ 23,133,785 $23,133,785 $ 27,591,054 $ 27,591,054

304,376,928 305,961,854 276,321,2(?4 276,824,287

369,467,975 369,726,208

5,000,000 5,000,000

3,865,833 3,953,621

349,387,792 349,614,233

3,656,473 3,788,688

`The Bank grants commercial and residential loans to customers. Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a

substanrial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on the area's economic stability. The

primary trade area for the Bank is generally that area within fifty miles in each direction.

The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. Commercial

and standby letters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers. The Bank, as a matter of policy, does

not extend credit in excess of the legal lending limit to any single borrower or group of related borrowers.

The Company's bank subsidiary maintains its cash at several financial institutions located in the Southeast. On July

21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was signed into law and permanently

raised the FDIC coverage limit to $250,000. The Company had no uninsured balances with financial institutions as of

December 31, 2016.

T'he Company maintains a cash balance in an account held with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). The FHLB is

not a financial institution, and as a result, funds held are not subject to FDIC coverage. As of December 31, 2016 the

Company had an outstanding balance of $1,176,673 with the FHLB, which is entirely uninsured.

T'he Company also maintains a cash balance in an interest bearing account held with the Federal Reserve Bank. The

Federal Reserve Bank is not considered a financial institution and as a result funds held are not subject to FDIC
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insurance coverage. As of December 31, 2016 the Company had an outstanding balance of $13,817,674. While this
balance is not covered by FDIC insurance limits, outstanding balances held with the Federal Reserve Bank are backed
by the full faith and credit of the United States.

U. OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Components of other operating expenses greater than 1 % of total interest income and other income for the periods
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015

Data processing

Debit card expenses

Legal and accounting fees

Taxes and licenses

$ 847,091 $ 788,657

390,080 348,993

384,963 343,026

236,773 205,309

The Company did not report components of other operating income greater than 1 % of total interest income and
other income for the periods ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

V. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank entered an informal agreement with the FDIC and the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance (DBF),
effective November 2, 2016. The informal resolution places minimum capital requirements on the Bank during the
life of the agreement as follows: Tier 1 leverage ratio of not less than 8%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of not less
than 10%. The informal agreement also restricts the Bank's payment of dividends, without obtaining prior written
approval, that would result in a reduction of the Bank's calculated capital to fall below the outlined minimum
requirements of the informal agreement.

On October 12, 2010, the Company entered into a written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta and
the DBF (the "Agreement"), pursuant to which the Company was prohibited from declaring and paying dividends
without prior written consent hom the regulators. In addition, pursuant to the Agreement, without the prior written
consent from its regulators, the Company was prohibited from taking dividends, or any other form of payment
representing a reduction of capital, from the Bank; paying interest, principal or other sums on subordinated
debentures or trust preferred securities; increasing or guaranteeing any debt; and redeeming any shares of the
Company's common stock. In appointing any new director or any executive officer, the Company was required to
notify regulatory authorities and comply with restrictions on indemnificarion and severance. T'he Company was also
required to submit progress reports within 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter. Upon notification received
from the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta dated December 1, 2016, CCF Holding Company was released from its
written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta and the DBF.

The Bank is subject to vazious regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.
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'The final rules implementing Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's capital guidelines for U.S. banks (Basel III
rules) became effective for the Bank on January 1, 2015 will full compliance with all the requirements being phased in
over amulti-year schedule, and fully phased in by January 1, 2019. Under the Basel III rules, the Bank must hold a
capital conservation buffer above the adequately capitalized risk-based capital ratios. The capital conservation buffer
is being phased in from 0.0% for 2015 to 2.5% by 2019. The capital conservation buffer for 2016 is 0.625%. The net
unrealized gain or loss on available for sale securities is not included in computing regulatory capital.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total risk-based, common equity Tier 1, and Tier 1 capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2016, the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which
it is subject. As of December 31, 2016, the most recent notification from regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as
"well capitalized" under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, based on the need for improvement
to support the risk profile of the Bank. To be categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total
risk-based, Tier 1risk-based, common equity Tier 1risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table.
There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution s
category.

'The Bank's actual and required capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table.

Actual

As of December 31, 2016

Total Risk-Based Capital To

(Risk-Weighted Assets)

Tier I Capital To

(Risk-Weighted Assets)

Common Equity Tier I Capital To

(Risk-Weighted Assets)

Tier I Capital To

(Average Assets)

Amount Ratio

For Capital

Adequacy Purposes

Amount Ratio

To Be Well Capitalized

Under Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions

Amount Rario

$ 37,451,000 11.54% $25,966,320 Z 8.0% $ 32,457,900 >_ 10.0%

33,638,000 10.36% 19,474,740 z 6.0% 25,966,320 z 8.0%

33,638,000 10.36% 14,606,055 z 4.5% 21,097,635 z 6.5%

33,638,000 8.04% 16,725,080 >_ 4.0% 20,906,350 z 5.0%
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Actual

Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2015

Total Risk-Based Capital To

(Risk-Weighted Assets)

Tier I Capital To

(Risk-Weighted Assets)

Common Equity Tier I Capital To

(Risk-Weighted Assets)

Tier I Capital To

(Average Assets)

W. SEGMENT REPORTING

For Capital

Adequacy Purposes

Amount Ratio

To Be Well Capitalized

Under Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions

Amount Ratio

$ 35,009,000 12.18% $22,985,114 z 8.0% $ 28,731,392 z 10.0%

31,715,000 11.04% 17,238,833 z 6.0% 22,985,111 z S.0%

31,715,000 11.04% 12,929,125 z 4.5% 18,675,403 z 6.5°~

31,715,000 8.10% 15,671,209 >_ 4.0% 19,589,011 >_ 5.0%

Reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. Reportable segments are
managed separately because each segment appeals to different markets and, accordingly, requires different
technology and marketing strategies.

The Company and its subsidiary do not have any separately reportable operating segments. The entire operations of
the Company are managed as one operation.

X. SuBSEQt.rENrEvEivTs

The Company performed an evaluation of subsequent events through March 24, 2017, the date upon which the
Company's financial statements were available for issue. T'he Company has not evaluated subsequent events after
this date. No subsequent events were identified that would have required a change to the financial statements or
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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Y. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

Condensed parent company financial information on CCF Holding Company at December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as

follows:

BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Cash in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary, at equity in underlying net assets

Accrued income and other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Note payable

Deferred tax liability

Due to subsidiazy

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders' Equity

Series A Preferred stock, 6%non-cumulative, $1,000 paz, authorized

9,200 shares, issued and outstanding 9,200 shares in 2016 and 2015

Preferred stock, no paz value; 990,800 shares authorized in 2016

and 2015; no shares issued or outstanding

or outstanding in 2016 and 2015

Common stock, $.10 par value, authorized 50,000,000 shares, issued

and outstanding 5,190,223 and 4,086,223 in 2016 and 2015, respectively

Paid-in capital surplus

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total shazeholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

As of December 31,

2016 2015

$ 267,156 $ 273,156

38,517,450 31,349,432

67,060 67,060

$ 38,851,666 $ 31,689,648

$ 3,865,833 $ 3,656,473

- 1,333,310

1,333,310 -

- 553

~, 1 QQ 1 d~ d QQfI ~~~

9,200,000 9,200,000

519,022 408,622

10,422,318 9,500,104

13,856,823 7,956,672

(345,640) (366,086)

~~ ~~~ ~~~ ~~ X44 ~i ~

$ 38,851,666 $ 31,689,648
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015

Revenues

Interest income $ - $ -

Total Income - -

Expenses

Interest expense 208,807 197,017

Other 45,014 21,769

Total Expenses 253,821 218,786

Loss Before Taxes and Equity Income of Subsidiary (253,821) (218,786)

Provision for (benefit o fl income taxes -

Loss Before Equity Income of Subsidiary (253,821) (218,786)

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary 7,147,572 3,904,173

Net Income 6,893,751 3,685,387

Retained Earnings, Beginning 7,956,672 4,693,565

Stock and cash dividends (993,600) (422,280)

Retained Earnings, Ending $ 13,856,823 $ 7,956,672
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating

activities:

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary

Compensation expense from issuance of stock options

Net change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accrued income and other assets

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from exercised options

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015

$ 6,893,751 $ 3,685,387

(7,147,572) (3,904,173)

39,014 14,717

208,807 197,017

(6,000) (7,052)

- 1,524

- 1,524

(6,000) (5,528)

273,156 278,684

$ 267,156 $ 273,156
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Mark Gilmer Vice President
Matthew Hale Vice President
Rochelle Hehir Vice President

*Heritage Bank Board Only
**Executive Officers

Scott Willis
Sheri Dockweiler
Tom Wegner
Wade Atwood

Alexander Mohr
Andrea Burkett
Brian Eddy
Carol Dauro
Debra Redding
Jenny Smith
Jenny Waits
Kay Embrey
Pamela Cisneros
Patty Reagin
Ron Willard
Stacy Hammons
Todd Oswalt

Jennifer Brown
Sally Shankle

Beverly Gurley

Lincoln Parks

Cassie Carpenter

General Information and Shareholder Services

Independent Auditors Corporate Counsel Transfer Agent and Registrar
TJS Deemer Dana LLP Nelson Mullins Riley & Computershare
1004 Hillcrest Parkway Scarborough LLP P O Box 30170
Dublin, GA 31021 Atlantic Station College Station, TX 77842

201 17`~ Street, NW
Suite 1700
Atlanta, GA 30363

Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President

Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President

Banking Officer
Banking Officer

Human Resources Officer

Marketing Officer

Operations Officer

Special Counsel
Edwin S. Kemp, Jr., Esquire
10l North Main Street
Suite 203
Jonesboro, GA 30236

The Company's Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 is available without charge upon written request. For a
copy of the Annual Report or other investor information please write or call Leonard A. Moreland, President and Chief Executive

Officer at the Company's Office, P O Box 935, Jonesboro, Georgia 30237. Telephone: 770-478-8881

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on May 25, 2017 at 9:00 am at the Fayetteville office.



Herlta e
B A N Kg

Jonesboro
101 N. Main St.
Jonesboro GA 30236

Eagles Landing
830 Eagles Landing Pkwy
Suite 100
Stockbridge, GA 30281

Branch Locations

Clayton County

Forest Park
822 Main St.

Forest Park, GA 30297

Henry County

Heritage Plaza
860 Hwy. 20/31 W.
McDonough, GA 30253

McDonough
203 Keys Ferry St.
McDonough GA 30253

Fayette County

Fayetteville
440 N. Jeff Davis Dr.
Fayetteville, GA 30214

heritagebank.com
770-478-8881

@2017 Heritage Bank. Member FDIC. CCF Holding Company * 101 N. Main Street *Jonesboro, GA 30236 * 770-478-8881. CCF Holding
Company is the Parent Company of Heritage Bank.
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